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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Trustees' Report
Year Ended 31 August 2022

The Trustees prasent thalr annual report together with the financial statements and auditar’s raport of the Charitabla
Company for the pariod from the 1 Septamber 2021 fo the 31 August 2022, The annual report servas the purposas of
both a Trustees’ report, and a directors’ report including a strategic report under company law,

The Academy Trust operates an academy for pupils aged 11 to 18, who are preferentially drawn from the area In which
the academy s situated. As a former grammar school, designated under as such under sacllon 104 of the School
Standards and Framework Act 1998, the academy selacts its Intake al Year 7 by reference to academic abllity. Tha
academy operates an open-access Sixth Form and as such typically admils batween 200 and 220 students from other
11 = 16 providers in the area at Year 12, in addition to those continuing into Year 12 from the School Iiself. The Main
School (Years 7 to 11) had a roll of 748 in tha school cansus of January 2022 and the Sixth Form a roll of 681.

1. STRUCTURE, GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT
1.1 Constitution:

The Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The Charitable Company's
Memorandum and Artlclas of Association ara the primary govemning documants of tha Acadamy Trust.

The Trustaes of Clitheroe Royal Grammar School are also the directors of the Charitabla Company for the purposas of
company law. The Charitable Company Is known as Clitheroe Royal Grammar Schoal (the school) (company number
07461173},

Additionally, the Trustees of Clitheroe Royal Grammar School are also the Governors of the School. Detalls of tha
Trustees who served throughout the year except as noted are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on

page 2,
1.2 Membars® Liability:

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes 1o contribute to the assels of the Charitable Company In the
event of il being wound up whila thay are a Membaer, or wilhin one year after they cease lo be a Member, such amount
as may be required, not axceading £10, for the debls and liabllities contracted before they ceased to be a Member,

1.3 Trustees’ Indemnities:

Since the Incorporation of the Charitable Company on the 6 Decaembar 2010, the Trusleas (Diractors) have bean
indemnified in respect of thelr legal liabllity for financlal loss arising because of a negligent act, accidental eror or
omission in the course of thelr officlal dutles. As explained In nota 10 to the Financial Statements the limit of this
indamnity is £10,000,000.

1.4 Princlpal Activities:

The principal activity of Clitheroa Royal Grammar School is to provide a quality, frea education for young people, aged
11 to 19, who liva in the araa local to tha School.

In determining its inlake at Year 7 the Schoal preferantially accepts those young paople who live in tha town of

Clitheroa and the surrounding 41 civil parishes of the Ribble Valley (as defined in the School's Admissions Palicy). At
Year 12, typlcally 200 students join those already in the School to enter the Sixth Form, from other Schools In the area.

(Continuad)



Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Trustees’ Report

Year Ended 31 August 2022

1.5 Method of Recrulimant and Appointment or Electlon of Governors {Trusteas):

The processes for appointing or alecting the varlous types of Govemor at Clitheroe Royal Grammar School are as
follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

5)

6)

Foundation Governors = The Trusteas of The Clitheroe Royal Grammar School Foundation have the right to
appolint up to FIVE Govemors of the School. Such appointmenits are usually made following consullation by the
Trustees of the Foundation with the Govemnors of the School.

In addition to thelr overall role as govemnors and trustees, the Foundation Governors are appolinted for the purpose
of ensuring that the character of the School Is preserved and developed, l.e., a salective 11 to 16 grammar schaal
with an open access sixth form.

Parant Governors — The Aricles of Assoclatlon require that thera shall ba FOUR Parent Gavemnors. Parents,
including carers, of registered pupils at the School are eligible to stand as individuals for election as a Parent
Govemnor. They are elacted by other parenis at the School as individuals who are representalive of the parental
body. Suilable procedures have baen put in place for the conduct of Parent Governor alections.

If insufficient parenis stand for election, the Governors must appoint Parent Governors to bring thelr number up to
that required by tha Articles of Assoclation. Such appointed Parent Governars would praferentially ba parents or
carers of reglstered puplls at the School. If, however, no such parents are willing to under the role then tha
Govemnors can appoint any parson who g the parent or carer of one or mare school-age children.

Staff Governors — Up to THREE Stalf Governors are elected by the School staff as Individuals who are
representative of the slaff of the School. Both teaching and support staff paid to work at the School are eligible for
staff govemorship.

Suitable procedures have been put in placa for the conduct of Staff Gavarnor elections.

Community Governors = Up to FOUR Cemmunity Governors can be appolnted by the Governors, Community
Governors can be peopla who live or work In the community served by the Schoal, or paopla who live outside of
the Immediate area and who are committed to the goed governance and success of the School.

Vacancies for Community Governors will be posted upon the School's wab site. Anyone expressing an interest in
becoming a Community Govermnor will ba askad to provide an appropriate curriculum vitae with thair letter of
application. Following an informal interview with the Chairman and Head teacher each application will be
considered by the Govamors.

The Governors may not appaint an employea of Clitheroa Royal Grammar School as a Community Governor If the
number of Governors who are employed by the School (including the Head teacher) would theraby exceed one
third of the total number of Govemeors,

Co-opted Governors = Up to THREE Co-opted Govamors can be appointed by the Govemors because they have
experience and/or experlise of particular of benefit to the school. Fallowing an Identification of specific needs
suitable candidates are Identified by the Goveming Body and approached accordingly.

A "Co-optad Governor” means a person who Is appointed to be a Governor by baing co-opted by Govamors who
hava not themsalvas baen o appointed.

The Governors may nol appoint an employea of Clilharoa Royal Grammar School as a Co-optad Govamor if the
numbar of Governors who are employed by the School (Including the Head teacher) would theraby excaed ane
third of tha total number of Govemors.,

Mamber Gavarnor - The Members of Clitheroe Royal Grammar Schoal (the Academy Trust) may appalnt up to
ONE Govamor.

(Continued)



Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Trustees' Report
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No person who Is a Local Authority Assaclated Person (LAAP) may be appointed as a Trustee (Govemor) if, once the
appoiniment has taken effect, the number of Trustees who are LAAPs would reprasent 20% or more of the total
number of Trusleas.

Local Authority Associaled Person means any person associated with any local authority within the meaning given in
Saclion 60 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989,

1.6 Policles and Procedures Adopted for the Inductlon and Tralning of Governors (Trustees):

Following their appolntment/elaction all new Govemars recelva an intreduction to thelr role from the Chairman and
Head teacher, this intreduclion includes tours of the School's sites and the opportunity to meet other members of the
Senlor Leadership Team.

Tha Govemnors at Clitheros Royal Grammar School are committed fo provide adequate opportunities for Governors to
undertake and receive suitable training, so as to enabla them to undertake thair role more effectively. To this end the
School maintains a Service Level Agreement with the Lancashire County Council’s Governer Services Depariment.
This Agreement allows for any or all the Governors o atiend any of the training coursas provide by Lancashire County
Council.

All Governors are aclivity encouraged (o take advantagae of this Agreement to gain a better understanding of the role
and responsibilities of baing a school governor and trustee. Additionally, Govemnars with specific reles are strongly
encouraged to undertake specific tralning.

Thera Is a nominated Tralning and Development Govemor who acls as liaison batween Govemnor Services and
Clitheroa Royal Grammar Schoaol.

1.7 Organisational Structura:

Bafore conversion to academy status on 1 January 2011, Clitheroe Royal Grammar School was a foundation school
with a foundation, as defined in the School Standards and Framework Act 1998. The relative autonomy of a foundation
school meant that the former Governing Body was structured to undertake similar roles to those required of the Board
of Trustees of an academy. Consaquently, whilst the exira rasponsibilities of the Trustees of tha Academy Trust have
been recognised, the structure of the board stlll reflacts its very successful predecessor.

At Clitheroe Royal Grammar Schoal, most of tha roles and responsibilities of the Board of Trustees have been
dalegated to a small number of committaes, as defined In the Governor's Standing Orders. The Board has, howaver,
relainad responsibility for certaln aspects, again as defined in the Standing Orders.

Membars of the Senlor Leadership Team (SLT), In addition to the Head teacher, attand Governor's meatings as
appropriate.

Tha Governors are responsible for the sirategle management of the School, deciding and setling the key aspects,
including strategic direction, annual budgets, senlor staff appointments, policy changes ete. Operational managemant
Is the responsibility of the Head teacher and staff. This latier is carried out at a number of levels, i.e., by the Senior
Leadership Team, Heads of Leamning, Heads of Year and Sixth Farm Tutors.

School policies are developad by senlor members of the School's staff, to reflect both the strategic direction agreed by
the Govermnors and statutory requirements. These policles are approved and adopted by the Govemors and
implamented as procedures and systems by the SLT and other designated members of staff.

During the year ending 31 August 2022 the full Board of Trusteas met four times; the Finance & Audit Committee four
times; The Estates Committee three limes; the Studenls and Staffing Committee three times, the Curriculum and
Achlavement Committee three timas; and the Admissions Commiitee once.

{Continued)
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Trustees’ Report
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1.8 Arrangements for Setling Pay and Remuneration of Key Management Personnel:

Arrangaments for setting the pay and ramuneration of key management personnal follows the Schoal Teachars Pay
and Conditions document (STPCD) and the Lancashire County Council Whole School Pay Polley. The Govemors of
Clitheroe Royal Grammar School adopted this Whole School Pay Polley to provide a clear framawork to exercise Its
powers In relation to tha pay of individual members of staff. The Governors have established a Chairs' and Pay
Commitlee to exercise their funclions in relation to the Pay Policy, with clearly delegated responsibliities.

For & new appointment to the post of Head teacher, the Govemnars will review the salary range taking account of the
responsibilities of the post, the soclal, economlc, and cultural background of pupils attending the school, whether the
post has bean difficult to fill, and the appropriata positions of other leadership group pay ranges.

For a new appointment to the post of Depuly or Assistant Head teacher, the Govarmors will review the salary range
taking account of the responsibllities and challenges of the post and whether the post Is difficult to fill.

Onee In post, the Head teacher, Dapuly or Assistant Head teacher's ovarall performance Is raviawad by the Chairs' and
Pay Commitiee/Head teacher, with reference to the quality of the appraisee’s leadership and management and the
progress made by pupils at the school, in accordanca with the school's policy on appraisal/performance managemant.

Movement up a pay range for members of the Senior Leadarship Team can only take place following a review of
parformance (which will Include performance objectives) at the end of the schoal year, and the raview has shown
sustained high quality of overall performance. These pay ranges are not Incremental scales and there is no right of
pragrassion following a revlew of parformance. In the case of the Head teacher such a review will consider the findings
of a parformance raview carried out by an Independent external adviser,

1.9 Ralated Partles and Other Connected Charitles and Organisations:

The Clitheroe Royal Grammar School Foundation, a Charitable Incorporated Organisation (CIO), Registered Charity
No. 1174177, helds on trust property and Invesiments that represent the present-day value of the parmanent
endowment of the School given lo it by Quaen Mary at its founding by Letters Patent in 1554, The income derived from
this permanent endowment can only be used by the Truslees of the Foundation in accordance with the objects of the

charity, La.

1) Providing for the School such special benefits of any kind not normally provided by governmental or other public
funds or provided as part of the normal running costs of the School as may from time 1o time be agreed between
the School's Govemaors and the Trustees of the Foundation; and

2) Otherwise promoting the education (including soclal and phyasical training) of persons who are pupils of the School
or former such puplls under the age of 25 years and who are in naed of financial assistance.

2. OBJECTIVES AND ACTIVITIES
2.1 Objects and Alms:

The principal object and activity of the Charitable Company Is the operation of Clitheroe Royal Grammar School to
provide education for pupils between the ages of 11 and 18.

The School provides an education for puplls who are preferentially drawn from the area in which the School is situated.
As a farmer grammar school, designated under as such under section 104 of the School Standards and Framewark Act
1998, tha Schoal selects Its intake at Year 7 by reference lo academic abiiity. The School, however, operates an open-
access sixth form and as such admits approximately 200 to 220 students from other 11 — 16 providers in the area at
Year 12 In addition to those continuing Into Year 12 from the School itself.

(Continuad)
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2.2 Objectives, Strategies and Actlvitles:

The Academy Trust was set up on 6 December 2010 to advance, for the public benefit, education In the Clitheroe area
of the County of Lancashire by maintaining, operating, and devaloping Clitheroe Royal Grammar School; a school with
a history and tradition dating back to 1554. Clitheroa Royal Grammar School offers a broadly-based curriculum.

The alms of the School rast on the following principles:

Our school Is built on high quality relationships and respect.

Our students are ancouraged o be happy, Independent, enquiring, creative, curious and respectful individuals,
We value the rich diversity of our sludent body and celebrate every individual and their unique educational
joumnay.

We creale a safe, effective leaming community where each Individual encounters a wide range of
opportunities to reach their full polential and to excel.

Clitheroo Royal Grammar School therefore aims to encourage students to:

Davalop lively and healthy bodies and minds, the latter capable of original thought, enquiry and wall-balanced
critical argument.

Bacome confident, independant leamers well-equipped for lifelong leaming.

Derive enjoyment from their leaming which should extend their intellectual capacity, develop their interest and
slimulate thelr curlosity,

Embrace the many opportunities affordad by davelopments In information and communication tachnologies,
whilst fully accapting the responsibllities that go with using them properly.

Engage In a broad pragramma of expariences which enable them to appreciate their cultural inheritance and
understand more about themselves and the werld in which they live,

Develop the capacities to make Informed, rational and responsible decisions and to work In ways which
enhance their self-respect and sensilivity to the needs of others, pariicularly those less advantaged than
themselvas.

Show respect for each other and all people working in the school and appreciate the diverse talents that
contribute to our school communily.

Play a full part In creating a caring, supportive school anvironmant.

Develop a range of reasoned baeliefs and values and a sympathy and respect for those hald by others, which
will prapara them to become conslderate and rasponsible citizens.

Display self-discipline and proper regard for aulhority.

Foster good behaviour and avoid all forms of bullying.

2.3 School Improvemant Plan for tha Acadamle Year 2022-2023:

The Summary School improvement Plan for 2022/23 has 4 overarching areas of focus:

1. Foster an open, connected and raspectful community.

2. Be In the top 25% of schools nationally for Value Added.

3. Improve oulcomes for Identified groups of students/individuals.

4. Further embed curriculum opportunities for reviewing and revisiting concepts, key skills and knowladge.

Outcomas for Students (Achlevement)

Improve achlevement in identified departments at GCSE and A Level.

Improve cutcomes with particular focus far 2022 on [dentified groups.

Ensure students continue to progress to a wide range of destinations Including Oxbridge and Higher and
Degrea Apprenticeships.

Rafine and reflect on processes to Improve accuracy of tracking data.

{Continued)
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Quality of Education

e 0 5 " 0 0 0

Continue to davalop our Quality Assurance processas for Teaching and Leaming (T&L).
Develop further the curriculum and plan leaming to best meet individual/group needs.
Encourage collaboration and connection batween students and further develop meta cognition.
Further develop curriculum links batween subjects and key stages.

Implemant racommendations from Ofsted subject reviaws.

Ensura effective and conscious use of Assassmant for Learning.

Devalop further the Involvement of parents/carers in supporiing leaming.

Personal Devalopment

[ ]
L
L

Make good progress towards achieving school's equalily objectives.

Review and develop Persanal, Social, Health and Economic (FSHE) curriculum across all areas of tha school.
Conlinue to develop whole-school Careers Education, Information, Advica and Guidanca (CEIAG) provision to
achieve all Gatsby banchmarks.

Fully re-establish a programme of enrichment activities.

Behavlour and Attitudas

Davelop and implamant "Say Something™ approach.

Recognise and intervene with appropriate groups in response lo behaviour and atendance dala,
Celebrate and recognise the diversity of our sludent and staff community.

Encourage sludents to develop the skills needed to become indepandant, creative and flaxible leamers.

Effectlvenass of Leadership and Management

Further davelop an exemplary safeguarding culture.

Further development of leadership capaclty at all levels with a ceniral focus on effective succession
planning and developmant of middle leaders.

Ensure the efficlant use of resources for financlal stabllity and sacurity.

L]
+ Review safety of both sites Including site safety Improvements and make appropriate plans for expansion in
light of increased student numbers (Condition Impravement Fund (CIF) bid).
+ Review cumiculum offer for 2023/2024.
+ Plan response and acllons related to the Govarment White Paper.
2.4 Public Benefit:

The Trustees have considerad the Charity Commisslon’s guldance on Fublic Benefit. The key public benefit delivered
by Clitheroe Royal Grammar School is the maintenance and davelopment of the high-quality education provided by the
Schoal, for over 4688 yaars, to tha young people of Clitheroe and the surrounding parishes.

In deing this Clitheroa Royal Grammar school not only offers a broadly-hased academic education but aims to educale
the whola individual. A very wide range of extra-curricular activities, educational frips, visits, and foreign exchange
programmes ara offerad and undartaken.

{Continuad)
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3. STRATEGIC REPORT

3.1 Achlavaments and Poerformance:

The schoal analysis of examination performance is very thorough using performance and benchmarking data from a
range of sources. Heads of Departments are provided with the resources lo undertake a full evaluation of the impact of
Teaching and Leaming on the cohort and en groups of students. There is appropriate attenlion paid to evalualing both
attainment and progress. Our discussions reflect the high aspirations which the school has for lts students and a
strong drive for conlinuous Improvemant.

Analysis of public examination outcomaes for the academic year 2021/2022

Introduction
We are very proud of our studenls' achievements, yel again, this year. The GCSE results, in terms of progress are

excellent and tha Sixth Form rasulls are suparb, Thay ara testament to the hard work of our students and staff during
tha challenging pandemic timas.

Key Stage 4

At GCSE we had 149 students entered for examinations (compared with 120 in 2019} and whilst the % attainment
appears lower in some subjects (probably due to a wider abllity profile), the Progress 8 score is 0.51 (0.43 in 2019).
This meant that, on average, our studenis achleved half a grade higher than expected.

47% of resulls were graded at level 8/9 and ovar 67% at gradas 7-9.

Key Points K34

Overall standards at the end of KS4 remain very high and are well above the national average.
This yaar thare was an improvemant In the progress 8 score from previous years.

+ The Attainment 8 grade at 7.48 is an excellent average GCSE and significantly higher than the national average.

+ Standards In the thrae cora subjects are high.

+ In Mathematics 97% of students achieved passes at grade 5 or better and the proportion of higher grades 7-9 at
82% was an excaptional figure. The progress 8 score for the mathematics component, at over 0.69, suggests that
over 2 thirds of grades were higher than might have been expected given the prior attainment of students and that
achievement in Mathematics was outstanding.

« Standards Improved significantly in both English Language and Literature in 2022. Approximately 70% of grades
ware at grades 7-9 In both Language and Literature. The progress 8 score for the English component, at +0.39,
suggests that over a third of students achieved a grade higher than might have been expected In either Language
or Literature and that achlevement in English in 2022 was high.

« Standards In Sclence remain high and approximately 70% of entries in Blology, Chemistry and Physics were
graded 7-9,

+ Standards and achievement across a broad range of GCSE option subjects remain consistently strong and this is a
significant strangth of the school.

» Progress B, at +0.51, is significantly above average compared to all schools (-0.03).

« Taking Into account overall achievement the data Is consistent with a judgement that outcomes In KS4 and 5 are
outstanding in 2022.

{Continued)
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Key Points KS5

« The proportion of A* grades awarded, at 19.3%, remalns abova the nallonal avarage of 14.6%.

= The Assessment and Leaming in Praclice Seltings (ALPS) value added analysis suggests that outcomes in a
majority of subjects wera elther In lina with or abova expeciation given tha prior attalnmant of studants.

s A significant number of dapariments continue to have upper quartila value added.

« Taaching quality grades are consistent with good provision,

e The overall ALPS value added dala and L3VA dala suggest that oulcomes at A2 ara very strong.

+ The 3-year ALPSA T score of 3, indicates overall upper quartile achievement over the last 3 years.

3.2 Key Performance Indicators:

The school sets key targets through the School Improvement Plan, which Is monitored regularly through rigorous salf-
avaluation. Examination results are carefully monitored against set targets. Internal and external data e.g., RAISE
online, ALPS and Level 3 Value Added dala are carefully evaluated and considered actlons are implementad. Qur
school's success, however, is not only measured by external examination results and the very positive responses to
our students and parent questionnaires Indicate that students have a wide range of opportunities to develop into wall-
rounded individuals.

The school complies with all the terms and condilions of Its Funding Agreamant wilh the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA) and manages its reserves in line with the policy set out below.

3.3 Going Concern:

After making appropriate enquirles, the Board of Trustees has a raasonable axpectation that the Academy Trust has
adequate resources to continue in operational existance for the foresesable fulure. For this reason, It continues to
adopt the going concem basis In preparing the financial statemants. Furiher details regarding the adoption of the going
concem basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements (note 1).

4. FINANCIAL REVIEW
4.1 Operating and Financlal Review for the year:

Most of the School's Income Is obtalned from the DIE via the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) in the form
of its General Annual Grant (GAG), the use of which is restricted to specific purposes, |.e., the objects of the Academy
Trust. The GAG funding recalved during the period covared by this report and the assoclated expenditure is shown as
restricted funds in the Statement of Financlal Activities.

The School was successful in both of ils bids to the Government's 2021 Condition Improvement Fund (CIF). Tha first of
these was In respect to the installation of a forced vantilation system in a number of rooms at the School's York Street
site, where adequate ventilation cannot be obtained by nalural means, @.g., by opening extemal windows. Tha majarity
of the work on this scheme was carried out ovar the summer of 2022 and work to complete the project will ba
undertaken as and when convenlent during the 2022/2023 academic year. The secand bid was In raspact to significant
improvements In the physical security at both sites of the School. Woerk en this schame was scheduled to start in the
autumn of 2022 and will ba complated within tha acadamic year.

Expenditure for the perlod covered by this report was covared by the GAG recelved from the DIE and other Income,
such as a successful CIF bid In 2021, voluntary income, activilies for generating funds and investment income.

During the accounting peried, tolal revenua income exceeded total revenue expenditure by £383,000. This meant that
the combined General Restricted and Unrestricted Fund show a cumulative reserve at the year end, before the
actuarial loss on the defined benefit pension schemes, of £1,203,000 (2021: £820,000).

{Continued)
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There wera no resirictad funds that could not be used for the general purpases of the School. Some funds (£86,637)
waere, however, designated In respect to tha Schoal's contribution towards two Condition Improvemeant Fund projects
that will be carmied out in 2022/2023. Consequently, available reservas at 31 August 2022 were £1,116,463 or
approximately 14.8% of the DfE funded revenue income received.

The aftermath of the covid pandemic has adversely affected the School's ability fo ba abla to carry out some of the
refurbishment work planned to be carried out over the summer of 2022. Consequently, the level of reserves being
camied forward into the next academic year is more than that determined by the Trustees' reserves policy. It is
expecied that |t will be possible to calch up on this programme of work In the 2022/2023 academic year. The Trustees
predict therefore that the level of reserves will reduce during 2022/2023 and will ba back In line with their reserves
policy by August 2023,

Tha Trustees, having considered their budgelary forecasts for fulure years, have continued lo maintain a cautious
approach in respect to the lavel of reserves baing hald, especially given the variability of both revenue funding and the
various additional cosls brought about by the ongoing Covid pandamic.

It was noted by the Trustees that a surplus or deficit in the Local Government Pension Scheme would generally affect
the cash flow of the academy ftrust in the form of an increase on decrease respeclively in employers’ pension
contributions over a period of years. In this respect the Trustees are concerned with the large deficit that the Local
Govemment Penslon Fund Is reporiing. (See Note 26 to the Financial Statements).

On converslon on 1 January 2011, all the fixed nssets of the former foundation school ware transfarred to the Academy
Trust and are shown as restricted assat funds. The balance shest restrictad fixed asset fund is reduced by depreciation
charges over the expected useful life of the assels concemed, as explained in Note 1 to the Financial Statements.

4.2 Reserves Policy:

The Finance & Audit Committee has reviewed the School's reserve levels and has determined that a minimum reserve
aquivalent to 5% of its GAG should provide sufficlent adequale working capital to cover delays batween spending and
racalpt of granls, and to cover any emergencies such as urgent maintenance work

Under Its Funding Agresment with the Secretary of State for Education Clitheroe Royal Grammar School currently has
no carried forward restriction on It reservas at the year end.

4.3 Invastmant Pollcy:

Apart from the cash held for the operation of the School, Clitherce Royal Grammar School has no realisable
Investments. With raspact to Its cash holdings tha Trustess have adopled a low-risk strategy. In addition to tha main
current account the School maintains an Instant access daposit account. Suitable sweeping and switching procedures
are in place at the School's bankers to ensure that adequate funds are available in the current account whilst
maintalning a balance In the deposit account as high as possible.

Towards the end of the 2021/2022 academic year the Trustees discussed and agread upon widening this strategy and
have taken steps to transfer part of thalr cash holdings into 6 and 12 month fixed term bonds, so as to banefit from
recent increasas in interast ratas, whilst maintaining a low-risk approach to thelr Invastments.

4.4 Princlpal Risks and Uncertalntles:

Following its conversion to an academy on 1 January 2011 the Board undertook a comprehansive assessment of
possible risks to tha future of the school (Risk Registar).

{Continuad)
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Following this initial risk assessmant, the major risks to which the School is exposed have been reviewad ragularly by
the Finance & Audit Committes and systems and procedures have been daveloped to manage and miligate these
risks.

The chief risks identified includa:

= Variations year on year in the numbers of studanis joining the School at Year 12, with a concomitant affact
upon funding levels.
Possibla funding changes at KS5 (High Value Course Premium and Level 3 Maths Premium).
Daficlt in the Local Authority Pension Scheme.
Increased employment costs brought about by increases In employers National Insurance Conlributions,
pension contributlons and staff pay rises.

4.5 Fundralsing:

The academy trust does not use any external fundralsers. Any fundraising undertaken during the year was monllored
by the Trusteas.

5. PLANS FOR THE FUTURE

Clitheroe Royal Grammar Schoal will continue to work to maintain the performance of ils students at all levals.
Additionally, It will continue Its afforts te Improve the achlevements of all its students, not only In academic subjects but
also in extra-curricular activities and in assentlal lifa skills; to Increase the number of opporiunitles open to them whan
thay mova on to higher education and ultimately employment.

During the year the Trusteas ware approachad by tha Pupll Planning Team at Lancashire County Counell (LCC) asking
if they would consider increasing the Planned Admission Number (PAN) at the Main Schoal, for entry at Year 7, from
150 to 180. Thus, bringing the number of siudents at the Main School (Years 7 to11) from 750 to 900 over the course
of fiva years. This Baslc Need Expansion Is considered fo ba assential so as to be able to accommodate the expected
significant Increase In the number of sacondary school aga children in the local area, which will be a consequance of
the large numbers of new houses being constructed in the Ribble Valley and surrounding areas of Lancashire.

The Trustees have agreed with LCC that an Increase In the PAN by 30 students for the Septembar 2023 intake can be
accommodated within the existing facilities at the Main School. They have also agreed, however, that to accommodate
the remaining 120 planned extra students, extra facilities need to be provided. In this respect LCC have agreed to
underiake a new-bulld and refurblshmant programme to provide 2 general teaching spaces, 1 sclenca laboratory, 1
design & technology room and a drama studio together with additional staff and student toilets elc as required.

Experience gained from a previous Increase in the School's PAN has shown that both stafl and students
accommeodaled the Increase In student numbers at the Main Schaool sita very well. The Trustees are confidant that this
will again ba tha case and that the School will be well-placed to be able to provide a suilable academic-style education,
for the expected increase in the number of secondary school puplis In the local area over the coming years.

The project, funded by the Clitheroe Royal Grammar Schoool Foundation, that has been taking place over the past
threa years lo provide extra soclal space at the Main School, has been a great success, The final phase of this project,
to turn part of the quadrangle In the centre of the Schaol into an all-weather space for Year 11 pupils, was delayed due
to a back log of work because of Covid 19, and is now expected to be completed during 2022/2023. This phase will
again be funded through a donation from tha CRGS Faundation.

6. FUNDS HELD AS CUSTODIAN TRUSTEE ON BEHALF OF OTHERS

Durlng the period 1 September 2021 to 31 August 2022 Clitheroe Royal Grammar School did net hold any funds as a
custodian Trustee on bahalf of any other charitable organisation.

{Continuad)
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7. AUDITOR

In s0 far as the Trustees are aware:

s there is no ralavant audil information of which the Charilable Company's auditor is unaware; and

» the Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit

infarmation and to establish that the auditer Is aware of that infarmation.

The Trusiees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees, as the company
directers, on ........ 7 .[.}J,.E‘.Em ........ ..and signed on the board's behalf by:

Do

Dr Andrew David Clayton
Chair of Govermnors (Trustees)
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1. Scope of Responsibility:

As Truslees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that Clitheroe Royal Grammar Scheol has an
effective and appropriate system of conlrol, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed lo manage
rather than eliminale the risk of failure lo achieve business cbjeclives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against malerial misstatement or loss.

The Board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Head teacher, as Accounling Officer, for
ensuring financial conlrols conform with the requirements of both propriely and good financial management and in
accordance with the raquiremants and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between Clitheroa Royal
Grammar School and the Secretary of Stale for Education. He is also responsible for reporting to the Board of Trustees
any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal contral,

2. Governance:
The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' Report and in the Stalement
of Trustees' Responsibilities. The Board of Trustees met formally four times during the year. Altendance during the

year al meetings of the Board was as follows:

GOVERNOR (TRUSTEE) MEETINGSATIENDED |  OUT OF POSSIBLE

Mr M Blacklidga (Vice Chairman) 3 4
Dr A D Clayton (Chairman) 4 4
Mrs J Pinder (Appointed 28/05/2022) 0 0
Mr J Sullon (Resigned 03/07/2022) 1 3
Mrs S Turner 2 4
Mrs CLlehner 2 2
| Mr A Rogers. 3 a
Mr A Schelfield 4 i
Mr C P Walson 2 4

Mrs M Brennan-Bargh (Resigned 04/10/2021) 0 o
Mr M N Frankish 4 4
Mr A Hawkins 3 4
Mrs V Hollingsworth 2 4
Mrs T Kesaar (Elected 10/12/2021) 1 2
Mrs J Holden 3 4
Mrs A Taylor 2 1
Dr H Whitehead 4 4
3 4

Mr J Keulemans (Head teacher)

In the period from 1 September 2021 to the dale of this report the following changes in the make-up of the Board of
Trusiees look place;

Mrs M Brennan-Bargh resigned as a Parent Govemor on 04/10/2021
Mrs T Kosaar was elected as a Parent Governor on 10/12/2021

Mr J Sulten resigned as a Foundalion Governor on 03/07/2022

Miss J Pinder was appoinled as a Foundalion Govarnor on 28/09/2022
Mrs J Holden's Term of Office as a Staff Governor ended on 05/10/2022
Miss S Flook was elecled as a Staff Governor on 01/11/2022

Mrs J Holden was elecled as a Slalf Gevernor on 01/11/2022

Mr Michele Longhi was elected as a Stall Governor on 01/11/2022

(Conlinued)
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Meatings

The Board of Trustees has dalegated much of Its work lo the following committees: Finance & Audil, Eslates, Students
& Staffing, Curriculum & Achlevement and Admissions. The various committeas meat annually as follows: Finance &
Audit Committee four times; The Estates Committee three times; the Students and Staffing Committee three limes, the
Curriculum and Achlavement Cammittea threa times; and the Admissions Commitiee onca,

The scope of the Board of Trustees work, including the terms of reference of each of its committees, is defined In its
Standing Orders. This document Is reviewad annually by the Board to ensure that It continues to provide a sound basis
for all its work.

Tha restriclions still belng brought about by the Covid-19 pandemic meant that the Trustees continued to meel remotely
using Microsoft Teams during the peried of this repert. All tha Trustees found that Teams was able to provide an
extremaly affeclive means of altending meelings. Indeed, it was noted by several of the Trustees that it had allowed
them to attend meetings that they might otharwise have been unable to attend In parsen, had those meeting been held
“live". Consequently, it has been resoclved by the Trustees that provision will be made for Truslees to be able to attend
all future meetings remotely, including those where the Trustees have agreed to meet primarily “in-person”,

Conflicts of Intarast

Prior to thelr appeintment/election, and also as pant of their induction, all Trusteas are made aware that the interests of
the academy trust and thus the School, aspacially its students and staff, are paramount, It Is emphasised that Trustees
must not allow thelr personal interests or views, or lhose of others, to override this basle tenel and that they must
exercise indepandent judgemeant at all imes

A conflict of interast is considared to be any situation in which a Trustee's personal interests, or the interests which they
owa to another body, clash or appear to clash with the interests of the beneficiaries of the academy trust.

It is racognisad that it is inavitable that conflicts of interest can oceur, The Issue Is not that of the Integrity of the Trustee
concerned, however, but rather the management of any potential to profit from a person’s position as Trustee, or for a
Trustea to be influenced by conflicting loyaltles.

All Trustees need {o ba alert to possible conflicts of intarest which they might have and how they can minimise the
affacts, A kay aspect of minimising the effacts of conflicts of Interast Is for Trustees to ba open and transparant about
such situations when they arisa.

To help the Trusteas to Identify any conflict of interast, each Trustee, upon thelr appeintment/election, complates a
*Declaration of Interest, Loyalty and Confidentiality”. These declarations are made again annually every October
thereafter. All of the declarations are scrutinised by the Governance Professlonal and any possible conflicts identified
are than added to the Register of Interests, which is published on the School's website, Additionally, at the start of each
Trustees' meeting, Trustees have the opportunity to disclose any conflict of Interest that has not previously been
disclosed, Including those of particular relevance to any items on the agenda for that meeting. Any new conflicts of
interest will ba noted In the minutes of tha meating.

When a conflict of Interest has been Identified, the Trustee in question will be asked to remove themselves from the
decislon-making process by leaving the meeting when discussions concerning the Inlerest in question take place.

Governanca Reviews

The Trustees recognise the Importance of reviawing thelr effectiveness, Consaquently, the Trustees regularly carry out
a revlew of the skills avallable to them within the Board. In this respect each Trustee completes a self-review skills
matrix. The resulting amalgamated skills matrix |s usad as a tool in an internal review of affectiveness. This review uses

as a basls a methodology like those published by several Local Autherities, the National Govemors Association (NGA)
and other Interested bodles.

{Continuad)
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The dala collected in the amalgamated skills matrix has consistently shown that the Board is fortunale in being made
up of Truslees whe colleclively possess a wide range of skills, including in the fields of Health and Safety, Special
Educational Need and Disabilities (SEND), accountancy, banking, legal, medical, HR and business, The Board has
bean able to draw upon all of these lo ensure that il operales in an effective and appropriale manner, The Truslees
consider that at the present lime they do not have any major gaps in their skills base, although it was recognised that
some further expertise in the field of markeling would be beneficial. It is hoped that this skills-gap can be addressed
through the appainiment or election of fulure Trustees.

The Truslees have reviewed heir effecliveness and have concluded that in nearly all areas of their operations they
ware vary effeclive, and thal tha experience and experlise of the Trusiees maanl that they were able to make decisions
in an informed and confident manner. The Trustees have noled, however, that the covid pandemic, and its aftermath,
severely restricled the opportunities for Trustees lo meel and liaise wilh stafl and parents, particularly at open and
parents’ evening, stafl INSET days ele., many of which wera still held on-line during the 2021/2022 academic year, It is
anticipated that attendance at such evenls in person will bacome increasingly more commaon over the farthcoming
academic year.

The Finanee and Audit Committee is ane of the commiltees Board of Trustees. Its Terms of Reference are lo!

a) To approve the annual indicative and final budgels, recommending the final budget to the full Board of
Trustees.

b) Te act as the Audit & Risk Commitlee, including responsibilities for all the items lisled for such a committee In
the Acadamies Handbook.

c) Tooversae the preparation of the Annual Trustees Report and Accounts.

d) Torecommend to the Board of Trustees and the members of the Trust the annual appointment of the School's
accountants, auditors, and internal reviewer,

a) To agree the Terms of Reference of the accountant, auditor, and internal reviewer,

fy Toreview lhe auditor's findings and any aclions taken by the School's managers in response to those findings.

g) Todirect the School's programme of internal serutiny, ensuring that risks are being adequately addressed.

h) To report to the Board of Trustees on the adequacy of the School's internal control framework, including
financial and non-financial controls and managament of risks,

i) To maintain a 3-year financial plan.

i} Te ensure that the School financtal syslems are in accordance with the guidance seét down in the Academy
Trust Handbook,

k) To ensura that the requirements of the School's Internal Financial Regulations are mel.

1) To raceive regular reporis from the School's inlernal auditor,

m) To be responsibla for reviewing the elfectiveness of the School's internal syslems and procedures, to énsure
that the objectives of the School are achieved in an econemic and timely manner.

n) To approve major itemns of expenditure.

Attendance at meetings of tha Finance and Audit Commillee in the year was as follows:

GOVERNOR (TRUSTEE) MEETINGS OUT OF POSSIBLE
: , ATTENDED e '

Dr A D Claytan 4 4

Mr J Sutton o] 4

Mrs S Turner 3 4

Mr A Rogers® 3 4

Mr A Scholfield 2 4

Mr M N Frankish® (Chairman of the Finance & Audit Committee) 4 4

Mr A Hawkins 4 4

Dr H Whitehead 4 4

Mr J Keulemans (Head teacher) 4 4

“Denotes commillee members who are qualified accountants,
{Continucd)
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3. Review of Value for Monay:

As Accounling Officer, the Head teacher has responsibliity for ensuring that the Academy Trust delivers good value in
the use of public resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and
wider socielal cutcomas achiavad in retum for the taxpayer resources recelved.

The Accounting Officer considers how the Academy Trust's use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the Board of Trusteaes where value for meney can be improved, including
the use of benchmarking data where available. Tha Accounting Officer for tha Academy Trust has delivered impraved
value for money during the vear by:

+ Controlling the staffing budget whilst retaining student numbars and hence Income.

+  Planning for possible expansion of Main Schoal provislon frem 150 te 180 students per year group.

+ Improving educational outcomes at KS6.

« Reducing postage, prinling and administration costs by the increasad use of elacironic communicalions

During the Covid-19 pandemic the School has continued to use the services of Iis regular suppliers as normally as
possible and has continued to ensure that they have always been pald In an efficient and timaly manner. It has been
inavitable, however, that during the pandemic thera has bean a shift in amphasis in the type of items that have baen
purchased. Resources have nacessarily been directed towards purchases deemed essential towards minimising the
impact of the on-going problems ralsed by Covid-19 on both students and staff, rather than as would have been used
previously. It is hoped that, during the 2022/2023 academic year, the emphasis in purchasing will be able to shift back
nearer to normality.

4. The Purpose of the System of Internal Control:

The systam of intermnal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable laval rathar than 1o eliminate all risk of failure
to achleve policles, aims and objectives, It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
effecliveness. The system of internal control Is based on an ongoing process designed to Identify and pricritise the risks
te the achievement of the Academy Trust's policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihcod of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficienily, effectively and economically. The
system of intemal conlral has been In place In Clitheroe Royal Grammar School for the period 1 Seplember 2021 to 31
August 2022 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements,

5. Capacity to Handle Risk:

The Board of Trusless has reviewed the key risks to which Clitheroe Royal Grammar School is exposed togather with
the oparating, financial and compllance controls that have baen implemented to mitigate those rsks. The Board of
Trustees is of the view that there is a formal on-going process for Idantifying, evaluating and managing the Academy

Trust's significant risks that has been in place for the period 1 Saptembar 2021 to 31 August 2022 and up to the date of
approval of the annual report and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Board of Trustees.

{Continuad)
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6. The Risk and Control Framework:

Clitheroa Royal Grammar School's system of Intemal control Is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative proceduras including the segregation of dutles and a system of delegation and
accountability. In particular, it includes:

= comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systams with an annual budget and periadic financial reports which are
reviewed and agreed by the Board of Trustees.

= regular reviews by the Finance & Audit Commiltes of reports which Indicate financlal performance against the
forecasts and of malor purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmas.
setting targets to measura financial and ather performance,
clearly dafined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investmant) guidalinas.
Identification and managemaent of risks.

The School's system of internal financial control was introduced followlng Its conversion to academy status. The system
adopted Is a natural evalution of that In place as a foundation school {which was compliant with Financlal Managemant
Standards In School (FMSIS)) and Iz In line with the requiremants of the Academies Handbook.

The Board of Trustees has considered the need for a speclfic Internal audit function and has appointed Red Rambler
Lid as its internal auditor. The Internal Auditer's role Includes giving advice on financial and other malters and
performing a range of checks on the Schoal's financial and other systems. In paricular, tha checks carried out by Red
Rambler In the year to 31 August 2022 have included tesling of the following processes!

purchasing
incoma

payroll and HR
cashflow and VAT
cyber security
GDPR complianca

Qvaer the current period the Intemal Auditor reported, on a lermly basis, to the Board of Trustees, through the Finance &
Audit Committee, on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the Board of Trustees' financial
responsiblilities. The Intemal Auditor also prepared an annual summary report outlining the areas reviewed, key
findings, recommendations and conclusions 1o help the Finance & Audit Committea consider actions and assess year
On year progress.

No material conlrol issues of any significance have arisen as a result of the Intemal Auditor's reviews. The Trustees
have, however, laken due heed of any commenls and suggestions made by the Intamal Auditor In respect of any minor
Issues and, aspecially, any improvements that could be mada to the School's systems and praclices; and have acted

accordingly.
7. Review of Effectivenass:

As Accounting Officer, the Head teacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the sysiem of internal
control, During the year [n question the review has been Informed by:

the work of the internal reviewer.
the financial management and governanca salf-assassmant process or the school resource management
self-assassment tool.

¢ tha work of the executive managers within the School who have responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework.

= the work of the external auditor.

+ corespondence from ESFA, as appropriate.

{Continuad)
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The Accounting Officer has baan advised of the Implications of tha result of thair review of the systam of internal control
by the Finance & Audit Committee and a plan to address waaknesses and ensura continuous improvement of the
system is In place,

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on .HQ.T/’Z'}ZQZ-:L «.. and signed on its
behalf by:

-

rJnmu lKnqum:n:
ccounting Officer

SR ERRRRRARARRRRIRIPNN .

Dr Andrew David Clayton
Chair of Governors (Trustees)
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As Accounting Officer of Clitheroe Royal Grammar School, | have considered my responsibility to notify the Academy
Trust Board of Trusteas and the Educalion & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriaty and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding recelved by the Academy Trust, under the funding agresmant
in place between the Academy Trust and the Secretary of Stale for Education. As part of my consideration | have had
due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financlal Handbook 2021.

I confirm that | and the Academy Trust Board of Trusleas are able to Identify any material imegular or improper use of
all funds by the Academy Trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the
Academy Trust's funding agreement and the Academlas Financlal Handbook 2021.

| confirm that no instances of material imegularity, impropriaty or funding non-compliance have been discovered to date.
If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will ba notified to the Board of Trustees and ESFA.

James Keulamans
ccounting Officer

e 155 R
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The Trustees (who are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law) are responsible
for preparing the Trustees' Report (Including the Sirategic Report and Directors' Repart) and the financial statements In
accordance with the Academles Accounts Direction publishad by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
ragulations.

Company law raquires the Trusteas 1o prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and falr view of the
state of affalrs of the Charitable Company and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including its
income and expenditure. In preparing these financlal statements, the Trustees are required to:

. salact sultable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

® observe the methods and principles In the Charities SORP 2018 and the Academies Accounts
Direction 2021 to 2022;

a make judgemants and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,;

s siate whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have bean followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financlal statements;

. prepara the financial statemenis on the golng concem basls unlass it is inappropriate to presuma
that the Charitable Campany will continua In opearation.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficlent to show and explaln the
Charitable Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Charitable Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companles Act 2008,
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assels of the Charitable Company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and delection of fraud and other irragularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that In its conduct and operatlen the Charitable Company applies financial
and other controls which conform lo tha requiremants both of prapristy and good financial manageament. They are also
responsible for ensuring that grants received from the Education & Skills Funding Agency and Depariment for
Education have baan applied for the purposas intanded.

Tha Trustees are rasponsibla for the maintenance and Integrity of the corporate and financlal information included on
the Charitable Company's webslte. Legislation In the United Kingdom goveming the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

-
Approved by order of the mambars of the Board of Trusteas on ... Gjl?"'j%u' ......and signed on Its bahalf

BChk

Dr Andrew David Clayton
Chair of Governors (Trustess)




Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Independent Auditor's Report to the Members of Clitherce Royal Grammar School
Year Ended 31 August 2022

Opinlon

Wa have audiled the financlal stalemants of Clitharoe Royal Grammar School (the 'Academy Trust') for the year ended
31 August 2022 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flows and the notes
to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policles. The financial reporting framework
that has been applled In their preparation Is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice), Including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Financial
Reporting Standard appiicable in tha UK and Rapubfic of ireland, the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies
Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 Issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give a true and fair view of the stale of the Academy Trust's affairs as at the 31 August 2022, and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its Income and expenditure, for the year then anded;

= have baan properly prapared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Praclice; and

= have been prepared In accordance with the requirements of the Companles Act 20086, the Charilles SORP 2019
and the Academles Accounts Diractlon 2021 to 2022 Issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency.

Basls for opinlon

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicabla law.
Our respongibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial stataments saction of our raport. Wae are Indepandant of tha Academy Trust In accordance with the athical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financlal statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements, We balieve that the audit
evidence wo have oblained is sufficient and appropriate 1o provide a basis for our epinion,

Conclusions relating to golng concern

In auditing the financial statements, wa have concluded that the Trustees' use of the going concemn basis of accounting
in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not Identified any material uncertainties relating to avents or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Academy Trust's abllity to continue as a
golng concarn for a period of at laast twalve months from when the financial statemants are authorised for issue.

Our responsiblliies and the responsibilities of the Truslees with respact to golng concam ara described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The Trusteas ara responsible for the olher information. The other infarmation comprises the Information Included in the
Trustees' annual repori, other than the financial statements and our auditar's report thereon. Other information includes
the Trustees' repart (incorporating the strategic report and the directors’ report), the governance statement, and the
Accounting Officer's statement, Our oplnion on the financial statements does not cover the other Information and,
axcept fo the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance concluslon
thereon.

{Continued)
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other Infermatlon and, in doing
so, consider whether the other Information is materially Inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
oblained In the audit or oltherwise appears to ba materially misstatad. If wa [dentify such materlal inconsislencles or
apparent material misstatemeants, we are required to determina whather there is a material misstatement In the financlal
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based an the work we have performed, we concluda
that thera is a material misstatament of this ather Information, we are raquired to report that fact.

We have nothing to report In this regard.

Oplinlons on other matters prescribed by the Companles Act 2008

in our opinion, basad on tha work undartaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Trustees’ report (incorporating the strategic report and the directors' report) for the
financial year for which the financial statements are prapared is consistent with the financlal stalemants; and

« the strategic report and the directors' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.
Matters on which we are raquired to report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the Academy Trust and its environmant obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstalements In the sirategic report and the directors’ repori.

Wa have nothing to raport in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to
raport to you if, in our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept, or relums adequate for our audit hava not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

= the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

« certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

= wa have not received all the information and explanations wa require for our audit.

Responsibllities of Trustees

As oxplained mare fully in the Trustees’ responsibilities statement set out on page 22, the Trustees (who are also the
directors of the Academy Trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal conltrol as the Trustees
determine Is necassary to enable the preparation of financial stalemants thal are froa from materal misstatemaent,
whather due to fraud or ermror.

In preparing the financlal statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the Academy Trust's abllity to
continue as a going concam, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concam and using the going concem

basls of accounting unless the Trustees either intend to liquidata the Academy Trust or to ceasa oparations, or hava no
realistic altemnativa but to do so.

{Continued)
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Independent Auditor’s Report to the Members of Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Yaar Ended 31 August 2022

Auditor's responsibllities for tho audit of the financlal statements

Qur objactives are to oblaln reasonable assuranca about whether the financlal statements as a whole ara frea from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but Is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when It exists. Misstatamants can arise from fraud or error and
are considered malerial If, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic declsions of users taken on the basis of these financlal statements.

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. Wae design procadures in line
with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in raspect of iregularities, including fraud.

A further descripiion of our responsibllities for the audit of the financlal statements s located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www.fre.org.uk/auditorsresponsibllilies. This description forms part of our auditor's report,

We communicate with those chargad with govemnanca regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and iming
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in intemal control that we identify during
our audit.

Use of our report

This report Is made solely to the Academy Trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapler 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has baen undartaken so that we might stale to the Academy Trust's members
those matters we are required to state to them in an audilor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent
parmitted by law, wa do nol accapt or assuma rasponsibility to anyene other than the Academy Trust and the Academy
Trust's Members as a body, for our audit work, for this repor, or for tha opinions we have formed.

f<ﬂﬁm/{/d ....................

Mr Robert Mitchall FCA (Senlor Stalutory Auditor)
Far and on behalf of CWR Charterad Accountants
20 Mannin Way

Lancaster Business Park

Caton Road

Lancastar

LA1 35W

Date: 13’/!13/5@31



Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to Clitheroe Royal Grammar
School and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

Year Ended 31 August 2022

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 31 August 2022 and further to the requirements of the
Eduecation & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as Includad in the Academles Accounts Directlon 2021 to 2022, we have
carmied out an engagemeant to oblain limited assurance about whather the expendilure disbursed and income received
by Clitherce Royal Grammar School during the year from the 1 September 2021 to the 31 August 2022 have been
applied to the purposes Identified by Parllament and the financlal transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

This report is made solaly to Clitheroa Royal Grammar School and ESFA In accordance with the tarms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to Clitheroa Royal Grammar School and
ESFA those malters wa are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitied by
law, wa do not accept or assuma responsibliity to anyone other than Clitheroe Royal Grammar School and ESFA, for
our work, for this report, or for the conclusion we hava formad.

Respective responsibilities of Clitheroe Royal Grammar School's Aceounting Officer and the reporting
accountant

The Accounting Officer is responsible, under the requirements of Clitheroe Royal Grammar School's funding
agreeament with tha Secratary of Stata for Education and the Academles Financlal Handbook, axtant from 1 Septambar
2021, for ensuring that expenditure disbursad and income received is applied for the purposes Intended by Parliament
and the financlal iransactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established In the Unlted Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance
and are to obtaln limited assurance and report In accordance with our engagement latter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Directlon 2021 to 2022, We report to you whether anything has coma to our attantion in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and Income recalved during the year
from the 1 September 2021 to the 31 August 2022 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parllament or that
the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

Wa conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academles Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by ESFA.
We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letler.

The oblective of a limited assurance engagement Is to perform such procedures as to obtain Information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficlent appropriate avidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagemant s more limited In scope than a reasonable assuranee engagement and consaquantly
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive oplnion.

Our engagement Includes examinalion, on a test basis, of avidence relevant to the regularity and propriaty of the
Academy Trust's income and expenditure,

The work underiaken to draw our concluslons Includes:
« Obtaining evidence including those tests relevant to the circumstances of the Academy Trust as prescribed in
Section 4 of the Guide For External Auditors section of the Academies Accounts Direction 2021 to 2022 issued by

the ESFA; and
= Planning and performing any additional tests we deasmed necessary lo express and oplinion on regularity.

{Continued)
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Independent Reperiing Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity to Clitheroe Royal Grammar
School and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

Yoar Ended 31 August 2022
Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material respects the
axpenditure disbursed and Income recelved during the year from the 1 Seplember 2021 to the 31 August 2022 has not
been applled to purposes intandad by Parllament and the financlal transactions do not conform lo the authorities which
govem them.

Mr Robert Mitchell FCA (Senlar Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of CWR Chartarad Accountants
20 Mannin Way

Lancaster Business Park

Caton Road

Lancaster

LA1 35W

Date: L157/@,/3 ozZz..
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Statement of Financial Activities Incorporating Income & Expenditure Account

Year Ended 31 August 2022

Income and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants
Charitable activiies:
Funding for the School's educational
operatlons
Other trading aclivitles
Investments

Total

Expendituro on:
Raising funds
Charitable activities:
School's educational operations

Total

Net Income/{exponditure)

Transfars batweon funds

Other recognised gains

Actuarial gains on definad banefit pansion
schames

Nat movement in funds

Raconelliatlon of funds:

Total funds brought forward

Total funds carried forward

Nota

6.7

15

15,
26

15

15

Restricted Restrictad
Unrestricted Ganaral Fixad Total Total
Funds Funds Asset Funds 2022 2021
£000 F00D £00D E00D £000
3 117 a3 183 703
- 7.554 = 7.654 7.020
307 3 - 310 a3
3 - < 3 i
313 7.674 a3 8,020 7,816
312 7.450 4156 8177 7.647
312 7,450 415 8177 7.847
1 224 {382) (157) 169
B (81) B1 - -
- 2,378 - 2378 25
1 2,521 {301) 2221 194
ags (2,243) 15,002 13,144 12,950
LT 278 14,701 15,365 13,144

All Income and expenditure derive from continuing activities.

The statement of financlal activities includes all galns and losses recognised during the yaar.
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Balance Sheet

Year Ended 31 August 2022

2022 2022 2021 2021
Notes £000 £000 £000 £000

Fixed asseis
Tangible assats 1 14,548 14,701
Current assetls
Stocks 12 3 3
Deblors 13 278 546
Cash at bank and in hand 1,662 1,253

1.943 1,802
Liabllities
Creditors: Amounis falling due within one year 14 587 681
Net current assets 1,356 1,121
Total assets less current llabllitles 15,904 16,822
Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than * =
one yaar
Net assets excluding pension liablility 16,904 15,822
Defined benefit pension scheme llability 26 (539) (2,678)
Net asseots Including penslon llabllity 15,365 13,144
Funds of the Academy Trust:
Restrictod funds
Fixed asset fund 15 14,701 15,002
Restrictad income fund 15 817 435
Pension reserva 15 (539) (2,678)
Total restrictad funds 14,979 12,759
Unrestricted Income funds 15 386 385
Total funds 15,365 13,144

The financlal statements on pages 28 to 53 ware approved by the Trustees, and authorised for issue on the
O A J"b, L2 o 2o B and are signed on their behalf by:

..... 0.Cllo

Dr Andraw David Clayton
Chalr of Governors (Trustees)

Company Limited by Guarantae
Reglstration Number: 07461173
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended 31 August 2022

Cash flows from operating actlvities
Net cash provided by/(used In) operaling activities
Cash flows from Investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change In cash and cash aqulvalents in the reporting period

Cash and cash equlvalents at 1 September 2021

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2022

Nolas

19

21
20

2223

2022 2021
£000 £000

635 (22)
(226) 105

400 83
1,253 1,170
1,662 1,253




Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financial Statamants

Year Ended 31 August 2022

1

Accounting policles
Ganaeral Informatlon and basis of preparation

Clitharoe Royal Grammar Scheol Is a company limited by guarantee Incorporated In England. The address of the
registered office is given In the Reference and Administrative Details given on page 2 of these financlal statements
and the princlpal place of business Is York Street, Clitheroe, BB7 2DJ. The nature of the Academy Trust's
operailons and principal activities are set out In the Trustees' Report on page 4.

The financlal statements of the Academy Trust, which Is a public benefit eniity under FRS 102, have baen
praparad under the historical cosl convention in accordance with the Financial Reporiing Standard Applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommendead Practice applicable {o charities praparing their accounts In accordance with the Financlal Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (Charities SORP (FRS 102) 2019), the
Academies Accounts Direction 2021 {o 2022 Issued by ESFA, the Charitles Act 2011 and the Companies Act
2006.

A summary of the princlpal accounting policles adopted {which have been applied consislently, except whara
noted), Judgements and key sources of astimation uncerainty, Is sat oul below.

Golng concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concem Is appropriate l.e. whether there are any material
unceriainties related to events or condilions that may cast significant doubt on the abllity of the School to continue
as a gong concem. The Trustees make this assessment In respect of a perlod of one year from the date of
authorisatlon for Issue of the financial statements and have concluded that the School has adequate resources lo
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no material uncerainties about the
Schaool's ability to continue as a golng concemn, thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
in preparing the financial statements.

Incoma

All Incoming resources are recognised when the Scheel has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is probable and
the amount can be measured raliably.

s Grants racaivable

Grants are Included In the Statement of Financlal Activities on a recelvable basis. The balance of income
racelved for specific purposes but not expended during the period Is shown In the relevant funds on the
balance sheat. Where income is recaived Iin advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is
not unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included In credilors as deferred
income untll the performance-related conditions are mel. Whera entittement cccurs befera income |8 recelved,
the Incoma Is accrued.

General Annual Grant Is recognised in full In the Statement of Financial Activilies in the period for which it Is
recelvable and any abatement In respect of the peried Is deducted from income and recognised as a liabllity.

Capltal grants are recognised when there |s an unconditional entitlement lo the grant. Unspant amounis of

capltal grant are reflected In the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised when
thera Is antittement and are not deferred over the life of the assat on which they are expended.
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financial Statamants

Year Ended 31 August 2022

1 Accounting policles (continued)

Incoma (continued)

Donatlons
Donations are recognised on a raceivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where
the recaipt is probable and the amount can be reflably measured.

Other Income
Other Income, Including the hira of facilities, is recognised in the perlod it Is recelvable and to the extent the
Academy Trust has provided goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If It Is practical to assess the falr value at recelpt, it Is recognised in stock and *Income from other
trading activities”. Upon sale, the value of the stock Is charged agalnst “Incoma from other trading activities®
and the proceeds are recognised as “Income from other trading aclivities®. Whera it is impractical to fair value
the items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised In the financial statements unil they
are sold, This Incoma Is recognisad within “Income from other {rading activilles”,

Where the donated item is a fixed asselt, it is measured at fair valus, unless it is impractical to measura this
reliably, In which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is recognised as incomea from
donations and a corresponding amount Is included In the appropriate fixed assel category and depreciated
over the usaful economic life in accordance with tha Academy Trusl's accounting policles.

Expanditure

Expenditure Is recognised ence there |s a lagal or constructive obligation to transfer aconomic benefit fo a third
parly, It Is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in setllement and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure Is classified by activity. The costs of each aclivity are made up of
the total of direct costs and shared costs, Including support costs involved In undertaking each activity. Direct costs
atiributabla to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than ona
aclivity and support costs which are not attributable to a single aclivity are apportioned between those aclivities on
a basls conslstent with tha use of resources.

L

Expenditure on raising funds
This includes all expenditure incurred by the Scheal to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes
costs of all fundraising activitles events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable actlvities
These are costs incurred on the School's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating to

the govarnance of the School apportloned to charitable activities.

All resources expendad are inclusive of Irecovarabla VAT.



Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 August 2022

1 Accounting policies (continued)
Tanglble fixed assels

Assets cosling £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, nel of depreciation
and any provislon for impalrment.

Where tanglble fixed assats have bean acquired with the ald of spacific grants, either from the government or from
tha private sector, thay are Included In the Balance Shest at cost and depraciated over thair expected usaful
economlc life. Where there are specific restrctions altached to the funding requiring the continuad use of tha asset,
tha related grants are credited to a restricled fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities and carried
forward In the Balance Sheet. Depraciation on the relevant assels Is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset
fund In the Statement of Financial Aclivities. Where tanglble fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted
funds, depreciation on such assets is charged 1o the unreslricted fund.

Depreclation Is provided on all tangible fixed assels other than freehold land and assets under conslruclion, at
rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its expected useful life, as follows:

Freehold bulldings 50 years straight line
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 33% stralght line
ICT equipment 33% straight lina
Motor vehiclas 25% slraight lina

Assets in tha course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until thay are
brought inle use and raclassified to freshold or leassheld land and bulldings.

A raview for impalrment of a fixed asset is carried out If events or changes in circumstances indicata that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverabla. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets and
thelr racoverable amounts are recognised as impalrments. Impalrment losses are recognised in the Statement of
Financlal Actlvitles.

Agoncy arrangements

The Schoal acls as an agent in distribuling 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA. Payments received from ESFA and
subsequent disbursemaents to studants ara excludad from the stalemant of financial activities as the trust does not
have control over the charitable application of the funds. The trust can use up to 5% of the allocation towards lis
own administration costs and this is recognised In the statement of financial activities. The funds received and paid
and any balances held are disclosed In note 28,

Liabilitles
Liabllitles are recognised when there is an abligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it Is
probable that a transfar of aconomic benefit will be required in setilement, and the amount of the settlement can be

estimated rellably. Liabllitles are recognised at the amount that the School anticipates it will pay to satile the debt
or the amount It has recelved as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financlal Statements
Year Ended 31 August 2022

Accounting pollcles (continued)
Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the School has an obligation at the reporting dale as a result of a past event which
it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to setile the obligation. Whare the affect of
the lime value of monay Is malerial, the provision is based on tha present value of those amounts, discounted at

the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the llabllity. The unwinding of the discount Is recognised
within inlerest payable and similar charges.

Leased assets
Rantals under operating leases ara chargad on a straight-line basls over the lease term.
Financial Instrumants

The Schoal anly helds basic financlal instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial assets and financial
llabllities of the Schoal and thelr measurement basls are as follows:

Financial assels — trade and othar deblors ara basic financial instrumants and are dabt Instrumaents measurad at
amoriised cost as detailed in note 13. Prepayments are not financial instrumants.

Cash at bank — Is classifiad as a basic financial instrumant and is measurad at face value.

Financial liabilities = trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instrumants, and are measured at
amoriised cost as detalled in note 14, Taxation and social security are nat Included in the financial instruments
disclosura daflnlllon. Dafarred income is not deemed to be a financlal llability, as the cash setllement has already
taken place and thera is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stocks

Stocks consist of unused stallonary. Stocks are valued at the lower of cost or nat realisable value.

Taxatlon

The School Is consldered to pass the tests sat out In Paragraph 1 Schedula 6 of tha Finance Act 2010 and
tharafora It meets the definiion of a Charitable Company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the School
is potentially exempt from taxation In respect of income or capital gains recelved within categories covered by Part

11, Chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeabla Galns Act 1992, to the
axtent that such Income or gains are applied exclusively to charilable purposes.
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HClitherna Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financial Statements

Year Ended 31 August 2022

1 Accounting policles (continued)
Penslons Benafits

Retiremant banefits to employaes of the Academy Trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Schema (TPS)
and the Local Govemment Pension Scheme ('LGPS'). These are defined beneafit schemas.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated to spread the cost of pensions over employees'
working livas with the School In such a way thal the pension cost is a substantially leval percentage of currant and
future pensionable payroll. The contributlons are determined by the Govermment Actuary based on quadrennial
valualions using a prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying
assels to assign between employars. Consequently, the TPS is treated as a defined contrbution schema for
accounting purposas and the conlribullons recognised in tha period Lo which they ralate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Scheol In
separale trustae administered funds. Penslon scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabiliies are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rale of ralum on a high qualily corporate bond of equivalant term and currency to the llabllities. The
actuarial valuallons are obtained at least triennlally and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts
charged to net operating income/{expenditura) are the current service costs and the costs of scheme Introductions,
benefit changes, settlements and curtallments, They are Included as part of staff costs as Incurred. Net interest on
tha net dafined banafit llabllity Is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activitias and comprisas tha intarast
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplying tha fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the periad by the rate used to discount the benefit abligations. The
differenca betwean the Interest incoma on the schame asseis and the actual return on the scheme assels Is
recognisad In other recognised gains and losses.

Acluarlal gains and losses are recognised Immediately In other recognised galns and losses.
Fund Accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of tha School at the discretion of the Trustees.

Rastricted fixad asset funds are resourcas which are to be applied lo specific capital purposes Imposed by funders
where the assat acquired or crealed is held for a specific purpose.

Rastricled general funds comprisa all other restrcted funds received with restrictions imposed by the funder/danor
and Include grants from the Department for Educalion Group.



Clitheroe Royal Grammar Schoel
Notes to the Financlal Statements
Year Ended 31 August 2022
1 Accounting policles (continued)
Critlcal accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are belleved to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Crilical accounting eslimates and assumplions

The School makes estimates and assumptions concemning the future. The resulling accounting estimates and
assumplions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual resulls. The estimates and assumplions that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels and liabllities within the next
financlal year are discussed balow:

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumplions. The assumptions used In
determining the net cost (Income) for penslons Include the discount rate, Any changes In these assumptions, which
are disclosed In note 26, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furtharmore, a roll forward
approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used
by the actuary in valuing the penslons liabllity at 31 August 2022. Any differances between the figures derived from
the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the penslon llabllity.
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Notes to the Financial Statements
Year Ended 31 August 2022

2 Donations and capital grants

Unrastricted Raestricted Total Total

Funds Funds 2022 2021

E000 £000 E000 E000

ESFA Capilal grants - A 3 301
Trips and other non-public funds . 104 104 42
Donations towards quad pavilion project - = - 289
Donatlons towards computers - - - 30
Donaled fixad assats - - - 21
Other donatlons 3 16 18 20
3 150 153 703

Income from donatlons end capital grants was £153,000 (2021 - £703,000) of which £3,000 (2021 - £13,000) was
aftributable lo unrestrclad funds, £117,000 (2021 - £49,000) was aftributable to restricled general funds and
£33,000 (2021 - £641,000) was attributable to restricted fixed asset funds,

£31,000 (2021 - £301,000) of government grants wara recelved for capital and malntenance works.

3 Funding for Academy Trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
DIE/ESFA grants
Genaral Annual Grant (GAG) - 7.1 7111 6,464
Othar DIE Group grants:
Pupll Pramlum - 63 53 L3
Teacher Pay/Penslon grant - 178 178 356
Rates grant B 30 30 30
Advanced Maths Pramium - 62 62 19
Supplemeantary grant - £9 59 -
Othar grants - 9 9 10
Other DfE group grants B - - -
- 7,502 7,502 6,920
Cther Government grants
Local Authority grants B 21 21 16
Other Govamment Granls - & 6 -
. 27 27_ 16
Covid-19 additional funding (DIE/ESFA)
Coronavirus Catch-up premium = = = 60
Other DIE/ESFA Covld-19 funding - 23 23 g
Covld-19 additional funding (non DIE/ESFA)
Othar Covid-19 funding - 2 2 15
- 25 25 B4

= 7,554 7,554 7.020
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Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Notes to the Financlal Statements
Yoar Endeod 31 August 2022

2 Funding for School's educational operations (continuad)

Funding for School's aducational operations was £7,554,000 (2021 - £7,020,000) of which Enil (2021 - Enil) was
attributable to unrestricted funds, £7,554,000 (2021 - £7,020,000) was attributable to restricted general funds and
£nll (2021 - Enll) was attributable to restricted fixed asset funds.

£7,554,000 (2021 - £7,020,000) of gavernment grants were recelved for the purposes of tha day to day running
costs of the Academy and its charitable objectives.

Other trading activities
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
Funds Funds 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Hire of facilities 4 - 4 -
Catering Income 253 - 253 52
Sale of educational goods and services 23 3 26 22
Exam related faes 1 - 1 3
Music tuition 26 - 26 16
307 3 310 83

Income from other trading activitles was £310,000 (2021 - £83,000) of which £307,000 (2021 - £93,000) was
aliributable to unrestricted funds, £3,000 {2021 - Enil) was atiributable to rastrictad ganeral funds and Enil (2021 -
£nil) was attributable to restricted fixed assat funds.

Investmeant Incoma
Unrastricted Rastrictad Total Total
Funds Funds 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000
Short lerm deposits 3 = 3 &
3 - 3 -

investment Income was £3,000 (2021 - Enil) of which £3,000 (2021 - £nll) was atiributable to unrestricted funds,
£nil (2021 - £nil) was atiributable to restricted general funds and £nil (2021 - £nil) was atiributable to restricted fixed
asset funds.
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6 Expenditure

School's educallonal cperations
Direct costs
Allocated support cosls

Non Pay Expenditure
Staff Other Total Total
Costs Premises Costs 2022 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
5,380 262 588 6,250 5,995
945 401 581 1,827 1,652
6,335 663 1178 8177 7.647

£312,000 (2021 - £105,000) of the above expenditure on the Schoal's educational operalions was attributable to
unrestricted funds, £7,450,000 (2021 - £7,160,000) was attributable to restricted general funds and £415,000 (2021
- £382,000) was altributable to restrictad fixed asset funds.

Net income/expenditure for the year includes:

Oporating loase rontals
Dapreclation
(Galn)/loss on disposal of fixed assats
Fees payable to the auditor for;
Audit
Payroll
Other services

2022
£000

416
M

-~ L L

No additional transacllons have taken place under Section 5.2 of the 2021 Academies Financial Handbock which

raquire additional disclosure.
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7 Charitable activities

Total Total

2022 2021

E£000 E00D

Direct costs — educational operations 6,250 5,995
Support costs = educational operations 1,827 1,662

8177 7.647

Analysis of direct costs Educational Total Total

operations 2022 2021

£000 E000 E000

Diract staff costs 5,290 5,390 5324

Learning resources 207 207 167

Examination fees 185 185 137

School trips and visits 104 104 40
Other direct cosis 354 354 327

Total direct costs 6,250 5,250 5,995

Analysls of support costs Educatlonal Total Total

operatlons 2022 2021

£000 £000 £000

Support staff costs 945 845 88z

Depreclation a2 a2 65

Technology costs 29 29 28

Premises cosls 358 355 378

Other support cosls 499 499 284

Govarnanca cosls 17 17 15

Total support costs 1,927 1,927 1,652
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B Staff
(a) Staff costs

Staff costs during the period were:
Wages and salarles

Social sacurity costs
Pansion cosis

Apprenticeship Lavy

Agency staff cosls

Staff restructuring costs

Staff restructuring costs comprisa:
Redundancy payments

Severance payments
Other restructuring costs

{b) Staff numbers

2022 2021
£000 £000
4,526 4,436
463 431
1,286 1,220
6,274 6,087
8 7
6,282 6,094
53 116
6,335 6,210

The average number of persons employed by the School during the year, and the full-time equivalants, was as

follows:

Teachers
Administration and support staff
Senlor Leadership Team

4

2022 2021

2022 Full-time 2021 Full-time
Number equivalent Number equivalent
78 70 77 70

75 43 80 45

8 8 7 7

162 121 164 122
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10

Staff (continued)
(c) Higher pald staff

The number of employees whosa employae benafils (excluding employer pension contributions) exceeded
£60,000 was:

2022 2021

No. No.

£60,001 - E70,000 2 3
£70,001 - £80,000 2 1
£100,001 - £110,000 - 1
£110,001 - £120,000 1 =
5 5

(d) Key management parsonnal

The key managemant personnal of the Schaol comprisa the Trustees and the Senlor Leadership Team as listed on
page 2. The tolal amount of amployaa banefits {including employer pension conlributions and employar national
insurance conlfributions) raceived by key management parsonnel for their services to the School was £701,000
(2021; £661,000).

Relatad party transactions - Trustees' remuneratlon and expenses
One or mora Trustees have been pald remuneration or have recelved other benefits from employment with the
School. The Head Teacher and other Staff Trustees anly receive remuneration In respact of services they provide

undartaking the roles of Head Teacher and staff members under thelr contracts of employmant, and not In respact
of thalr rala as Trusteas. Tha valua of Trustees' remunaration and other benefits was as follows:

J Keulemans (Head leacher and Trustae):

Remuneralion £110,000 - £115,000 (2021: £105,000 - £110,000)
Employers’ pension coniributions £25,000 - £30,000 (2021: £25,000 - £30,000)

A F Priory (Staff Trustee resignad 18.03.21):
Remuneration £nil (2021: £20,000 - £25,000)
Employers’ pension contributions £nil (2021: £5,000 - £10,000)

J Holden (Staff Trustee):
Remunaeration £15,000 - £20,000 (2021: £15,000 - £20,000)
Employars’ pansion contributions £0 - £5,000 (2021: £0 - £5,000)

During the year endad 31 August 2022, traval and subsistence expense claims in performing the role of Trustee
totalled £nil (2021: Enll).

No other transactions with Trusteas were undertaken during the course of the year ended 31 August 2022,

Trustees' and officers’ Insuranca

The School has opted Into the Depariment for Education’s Risk Protection Amangement (RPA), an allamative to
insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects Trustees and officers from
claims arising from negligent acts, emors or omisslons occurring whilst on academy business, and provides cover
up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the Trustees and officers’ indemnity element from the overall cost
of the RPA scheme.
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11 Tanglble fixed assets

12

13

14

Fraehold Fumilure Computer Moter Total
Land and and Equipment Vehicles £000
Buildings  Equipmaent £000 £000
£000 £000
Cost
At 1 Saptember 2021 17.665 470 218 27 18,380
Additions 128 78 56 - 263
Dispesals - {50) - - {(50)
At 31 August 2022 17,793 499 274 27 18,583
Depreciation
At 1 Seplembar 2021 3,151 419 a5 14 3,679
Charged In period 307 s 66 7 416
Disposals - (50) - - (50)
At 31 August 2022 3,458 405 161 21 4,045
Net book values
At 31 August 2021 14,514 51 123 13 14,701
At 31 August 2022 14,335 a4 113 € 14,548
Stocks
2022 2021
E000 £000
Statlonery 3 3
3 ]
Dabtors
2022 2021
£000 £000
Trade debtors 1 -
VAT recoverable 73 68
Other dablars 109 386
Prapayments and accrued Income a5 82
278 546
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
2022 2021
£000 £000
Trade creditors 118 171
Other taxation and soclal sacurity 113 105
Other creditors 169 161
Accruals and doferred Income 187 244
587 681
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15 Funds
Balance at Galns,  Balanca at
1 September Lossas and 31 August
2021 Income  Expenditure Transfers 2022
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restrictad genoral funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 412 7111 (6,638) (81) 804
Pupll pramium grant = 53 (53) - =
Teacher Pay/Pensien grant - 178 (178) - -
Rates grant - 30 (30) - -
Advanced Maths Premium - 62 (62) - -
Supplementary grant - 59 (59) - =
Other DIE/ESFA grants - 9 9 . o
Local Authority grants - 21 (21) - -
Coronavirus Catch-up premium 20 - (13) - 7
Other DFE/ESFA Covid-19 2 23 (21) - 4
funding
Other non DFE/ESFA Covid 18 - 2 2) - -
funding
Other rastricted funds 1 126 (125) - 2
Pansion reserve (2,678) - (239) 2,378 (539)
(2,243) 7.674 (7,450) 2,297 278
Restricted fixed asset funds
DIE/ESFA capltal grants 301 b - (179) 153
Other restrictad fixad asset funds - 2 - (2) -
Capltalised assels post conversion 2,561 - (155) 262 2,668
Assals on conversion 12,140 - _(260) - 11,880
15,002 33 {415) 81 14,701
Total restricted funds 12,758 7.707 (7.865) 2,378 14,979
Total unrestricted funds 385 313 (312) - 386
Total funds 13,144 8,020 (8,177) 2,378 15,365

The spacific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as fallows:

The General Annual Grant (GAG) must be used for the normal running cosis of the School. Under the funding
agreement with the Secratary of State, the School is not subjact to a limit en the amount of GAG that it could carry
forward at 31 August 2022, At tha year and tha carry forward of GAG funding was £804,000.

Other DIE/ESFA Group Grants, and Local Authorily Grants include monles recelved outside of GAG funding end
thesa Grants are all related to the furtherance of aducation within the School. All of this funding was spent during
the year.

Other restricted funds Include monles from trips and non-public funds and donations, whose purpose Is restricted.
As at the year end £2,000 was unspent.

The pension reserve represents the value of the school's share of the deficit in the Local Government Panslon
Scheme. The value of the deficit had reduced to £539,000 at the 31 August 2022.
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15 Funds (continued)

DIE Group capltal grants represent capital monies recelved during the period from the ESFA. £31,000 In respect of
the Devolved Formula Capital grants remains unspent at the year end and is carried forward to the next accounting
pericd. The balance carmied forward also Includes unspent funding from the Capital Improvement Fund for
mechanical ventilation works amounting to £4,000 and £118,000 in respect of the safeguarding project.

Assets purchased post conversion Is the fund balanca relating to all fixed assets purchased since the School
bacame an Academy.

Assels on conversion represent the transfer of the fraehold assaets valued at £15,000,000 Into the Schoal on
convarsion to Academy status depreciated over a 50-year pariod.

Unrestricted funds represent funds generaled via activilies such as sale of matarials, lettings, catering and music
lessons to students, Incoma from the Office of National Statistics for taking part in an infection survey and income
from universities with respact to student teachers. It also includes the brought forward surplus on converslon to
Academy status. The surplus on this fund at the year end was £386,000 and these funds can be used at the
discretlon of the Govamors to meat the charilabla objectives of the School.
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15 Funds (continuad)

Comparative information In respact of the preceding period is as follows:

Balanca at Gains, Balance at
1 Saplambar Lossas and 31 August
2020 income Expenditure Transfers 2021
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Restrictad general funds
Genaral Annual Grant (GAG) 359 6,464 (6,374) (37) 412
Pupil premium grant - 41 (41) . -
Teacher Pay/Penslon grant - 356 (3586) - .
Rales grant - 30 (30) = -
Advanced Maths Premium - 19 (19)
Other DIE/ESFA grants = 10 (10) - -
Leeal Authority granis - 16 {(16) - -
Coronavirus Catch-up preamium - &0 (40) - 20
Other DIE/ESFA Covid-19 funding . 9 Q) . 2
Other non DIE/ESFA Covid-19 - 15 (15) - .
funding
Other restricted funds 2 48 (50) - 1
Panslon reserva (2,501) - (202) 25 (2,678)
(2,140) 7,069 {7,160) (12) (2,243)
Restricted fixed asset funds
DIE/ESFA capital grants 114 3 - (114) 30
Other restricted fixed asset funds 45 340 - (385) -
Capital assets post conversion 2147 - (122) 536 2,561
Assets on conversion 12,400 i (260) - 12,140
14,706 641 {382) 37 15,002
Total restrictad funds 12,566 7,710 (7,642) 25 12,759
Taotal unrestricted funds 384 106 (105) - 385
Total funds 12,950 7.816 (7.647) 25 13,144
16 Analysis of nat assets between funds
Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are reprasentad by:
Restricted Restricted
Unrestricted Ganeral Fixed Assat
Funds Funds . Funds Total Funds
£000 £000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assels - - 14,548 14,548
Current assats 386 1,404 153 1,843
Current llabllities - (587) . (587)
Panslon schame llabllity - (539) . (539)
Total not assots 386 278 14,701 15,365
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16 Analysis of net assets between funds (continuad)

Comparative infarmation In respect of the praceding period Is as follows;

17

Restricted Resfricted
Unrestrictad Goneral Fixed Assot
Funds Funds Funds Total Funds
£000 E00OD £000 E000
Tangible fixed assets - = 14,701 14,701
Current assats 385 1,116 301 1,802
Current liabllitles - (681) - (681)
Panslen schama liabllity - (2.678) = (2,678)
Total net assots 385 {2,243) 165,002 13,144
Capital commitments
2022 2021
£000 £000
Contracted for, but not provided in the financial statements 244 28

Commitments under operating leases

Operaling leases

At 31 August 2022 the total of the Academy Trusl's fulure minimum lease payments under nen-cancellable

operating leases was:

Amounts dua within one year
Amounts due batween one and five years
Amounis dua after five years
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19 Reconclliation of net Income/(expenditure) to net cash inflow from operating activities

2022 2021
£000 £000
Net (expanditure)/income for the reparling period (as per the Statement of (157) 169
Financlal Activities)
Adjusted for:
Dapreciation (note 11) 416 382
Capltal grants from DIE and other capital income (33) (641)
Proceeds from sale of tangible fixed assets 1) g
Interast raceivable (note 5) (3) =
Definad benefit pansion schema cost less confributions payable (note 26) 186 160
Defined benefit pension schema finance cost (note 26) 43 a2
Decrease/(increase) In debtors 268 (228)
(Decrease)increase In credilors (94) 94
Net cash provided by/{used In) operating activitles 635 (22)
20 Cash flows from flnancing activities
2022 2021
£000 £000
Repayments of barmowing - -
Cash Inflows from borrowing - .
Net cash provided by/(used In) financing activitles - =
21 Cash flows from Investing activitles
2022 2021
£000 £000
Dividends, interest and rents from Investment 3 -
Proceads from sale of tanglble fixed assels 1 -
Purchasa of tangibla fixad assats {263) {536)
Capital grants from DFE/ESFA 3 30
Capital funding received from sponsors and others 2 340
Net cash providad by Invasting activities (226) 105
22 Analysis of cash and cash equivalenis
2022 2021
£000 £000
Cash at bank and In hand 1662 1,253

Total cash and cash squivalents 1,662 1,253
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23 Analysis of changes In net dobt

At1 Cash  Acquisiion Finance Other At 31

Septamber flows  /disposal leases non-cash  August
2021 of changes 2022
subsidiares

Cash 1,253 409 - - - 1,662

Cash aqulvalents 2 i é B i i

Ovardraft facllitias repayable on demand = - - - 5 .

1,253 409 = - - 1,662

Loans falling due wilhin one year - . & = i 4

Loans falling due after more than one - . - 5 - &
year

Finance lease obligations B - = = - &

Total 1,253 409 - - - 1,662

Contingent Liabllities

During the period of the funding agreement, In the event of the sale or disposal by other means of any capital assat
for which a Government Capital grant was recelved, the Scheal is required to elther re-Invest the proceeds or to
repay the Secretary of State for Education the same proportion of the proceeds of the sale or disposal as equates
with the proportion of the original cost met by the Secretary of State, as the Secretary of Stala may require.

Members’ Liabllity

Each Member of the charitable company undertakes to conltribute to the assels of the company In the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a Member, or within one year afler he/she ceases to be a Member, such amount
as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debis and liabilities contracted before he/sha ceases to be a
Member,

Pension and similar obligations

Tha Schoal's employees belong to two princlpal pension schemes: the Teachers' Penslon Scheme England and
Wales (TPS) for academic and relatad staff, and the Local Governmant Pansion Schame (LGFS) for non-teaching
staff, which Is managed by Lancashira County Penslon Fund. Both are multi-employer defined-benefit schemes.
The latest acluarial valuation of the TPS was 31 March 2016 and of the LGPS 31 March 2019,

Conlributions amounting to £118,778 (2021: £114,539) were payable to the schamas at 31 August 2022 and are
included within credilars.

48



Clitheroe Royal Grammar School

Notes to the Financial Statemaents

Year Ended 31 August 2022

26 Panslon and similar obligations (continued)
Teachera' Pension Scheme
Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a stalutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and,
from 1 January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-ime employment following appointment or a change of
contract, although thay are able to opt oul.

The TPS Is an unfunded scheme and members conlribule on a 'pay as you go' basis ~ these contributions along
with those made by employars are cradited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Padiament.

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pansion Schama

The Govenment Acluary, using normal actuarial principles, conduels a formal actuarial review of the TPS In
accordance with the Publle Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury avery 4 years. The aim of the review is to spacify the lavel of fulure contributions. Actuarial scheame
valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of fulure costs, design of benefits and many other
factors. The lalest actuarlal valuation of tha TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2016. The valuation report was
published by the Dapartment for Education on 5™ March 2019. The key alemants of the valuatlion and subsequent
consultation ara:

+ employer contribution rates set at 23.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% administration levy)

« total schema liabllites {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for service to
the effective date of £218,100 millon and notional assals (estimated fulure contributions togethar with the
netional investments held at the valuatlon date) of £196,100 millien, giving a notlonal past service deficit of
£22,000 million

s the SCAPE rate, set by HMT, is usad to datermina the notional invastment return. The current SCAPE rate is
2.4% abova the rate of CFI. assumad real rate of return is 2.4% in excess of prices and 2% In excess of
eamings. The rate of real eamings growth is assumed to be 2.2%. The assumed nominal rate of retum
including earnings growth is 4.45%.

The naxt valuation result Is due to be implementad from 1 April 2023.

The pension costs pald to TPS In the perled amounted te £1,118,000 (2021: £1,085,000).

A copy of tha valuation report and supporting documentation Is on the Teachers’ Pansions wabsita.

Under the definitions set out In FRS 102, the TPS Is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The Academy

Trust has accounted for its contributiens to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme, The Academy
Trust has set out abova the Information avallable on the scheme.
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26 Penslon and simllar obligations (continued)
Local Government Penslon Scheme

The LGPS Is a funded defined-benafil schame, with the assels held in separate trustee-administered funds. The
total eontributlon made for tha year ended 31 August 2022 was £303,000 (2021: £308,000), of which amployar's
contributions totalled £246,000 (2021: £250,000), and employaes’ contributions totalled £57,000 (2021: £58,000).
The agreed contribution rates for future years ara 19.9% for employers and the rate for employees remains
dependant on the samings of the amployae.

Parfiament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
an Academy Trust closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabllities would be met by the
Depariment for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18" July 2013,

As described In note 1 the LGPS obligation ralates lo the employeas of the School, who were the employeas
transferred as part of the convarsion from the maintained school and new employaas who were eligible to, and did,
join the Scheme in the period. The obligation in respect of employees who transfarred on conversion represents
their cumulalive service at both the predecessor school and the School at the balance sheet date.

Princlpal Actuarial Assumptions At At31

August August

2022 2021
Rate of increasa in salarias 4.4% 4.2%
Rale of increasa for pensions in paymant / Inflation 3.0% 2.8%
Discount rate for schema liabllities 4.3% 1.7%
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.98% 2.7%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvemeants In mortality rates. The
assumed life expectations on retirament age 65 ara:

Ata1 At 31
August August
2022 2021
Rallring loday
Males 223 224
Females 25.0 25.1
Reliring In 20 years
Males 237 238
Famales 268 28.9
Sensitlvity analysis
Sensltivity 1  Sensltivity2  Sensitivity 3 Sanslitivity 4
+0.1% pa +0.1% pa +0.1% pa 1yearincin
Contral  discount rate inflation  pay growth life expectancy
E00D £000 £000 £000 £000
Liabllities 4,566 4,484 4,649 4,574 4,662
Assels (4,027) (4,027) (4,027) (4,027) {4,027)
Daficit 539 457 622 547 635
Frojectad sarvice cost 234 228 240 234 240

Projacted net Intarest 18 15 21 18 22
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26 Penslon and similar obligations (continued)
Local Government Panslon Scheme (continuad)

The Academy Trust's share of the assets In the schama was:
Falr value at Falr value at

31 August 31 August
2022 2021
Equities 1,801 1,810
Other Bonds 177 190
Property 438 359
Cash and other liquld assets 64 75
Other 1,446 1,151
Total market value of assets 4,027 3,585
The actual return on scheme assets was £277,000 (2021: £424,000).
Amounts recognised In the statement of financlal activities
2022 2021
£000 £000
Current service cost (net of employee contributions) (190) (154)
Past service cosls . .
Interest income 62 55
Interast expensa {105) {97)
Benefit changes, gain/(loss) on curiallment and galn/(loss) on settlement - -
Admin expenses (6) {(6)
Total operating charge (239) (202)
Changas In the prasent value of definad benefit obligations ware as follows:
2022 2021
£000 £000
At 1 September 6,263 5414
Current sarvica cost 436 404
Interast cost 105 97
Employee contributions 57 58
Actuarial (gain)loss {2,163) 344
Benafits paid (132) (54)
At 31 August 4,568 6,263
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26

Penslon and simllar obligations (continued)
Local Government Pension Scheme (continued)

Changes In the falr value of Academy Trust's share of scheme assats:

2022 2021

£000 £000
At 1 Septamber 3,585 2,913
Interest income 62 55
Retum on plan assets (excluding interest incoma) - -
Assats distributed on settlements . s
Acluarial gain 215 369
Employer contributions 246 250
Employee contribulions 57 58
Benaflls pald (132) (54)
Administrative axpanze (6) (6)
At 31 August 4,027 3,588

Relatad Party Transactions

Owing to the nature of the School's operations and the composition of the Board of Trusteas balng drawn from
local public and private sactor organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which tha Trusteas
have an Interest. All transactions Involving such organisations are conducted in accordance wilh the requirements
of the Academles Financlal Handbook, including netifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April
2019 and obtalning their approval where required, and with the School's financial regulations and normal
procurement procedures.

The following related party transaclions took place In the financial year:

The School recelved donations totalling £5.000 from the associated charity Clitheroe Royal Grammar School
Foundation (charity number 1174177), Thaese donalions ware for a varety of educational purposes. At the year end
all of these donations had been fully utilised.

No related party transactions took place in the period of account, other than cerlain Trustees' remunaration and
expenses already disclosad in nota 9.

Agency arangements

Tha School distdbutes 16-19 bursary funds to students as an agent for ESFA. In the accounting year ending 31
August 2022 the trust recaived £68,000 (2021: £57,000) and disbursed £66,000 (2021: £51,000) from the fund.

An amount of £21,000 (2021: £19,000) is included In ather creditors relating to undistributed funds. These funds
ara lo be ulllised after the end of the year.
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